# Marblehead Conservation Commission Minutes February 20, 2014

Meeting was held in the lower conference room at the Mary A. Alley Building, 7 Widger Road

Meeting was called to order at 7:10 PM

Present were: Commission Members Fred Sullivan, Brian LeClair, David VanHoven, Ken Fisher and Don Tritschler. Also present was Willy Lanphear, Conservation Administrator.

The hearings were conducted under the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act and the Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw.

Note: The commission currently has six members. Per the MACC Handbook, section 4.1.2, most lawyers agree that a quorum is "...a majority of commissioners currently serving". The quorum for this meeting is therefore four members.

#### **Discussion Items:**

- 1. Rebecca Curran, the Town Planner of Marblehead, presented a proposal (reference December 2, 2013 proposal letter) to have the Conway School of Landscape Architecture come up with a conceptual plan for the Lead Mill site. Funding would come from project 479 and is limited to \$10,000. The Town Finance Director states that the work is eligible for funding. The Commission noted that the fiscal year ends June 30, 2014 if additional work comes up in the future. Ken Fischer excused himself because he knows one of the Trustees of the Conway School. A motion and second were made to approve. All (except Ken Fisher) members present approved.
- 2. The Commission discussed proposed regulations for applications and submittals. The Commission agreed to set up a sub-committee to develop and make recommendations.

**Approve Minutes:** A motion was made and seconded "to approve the minutes of 13 February 2014." All members voted in the affirmative.

### 40-1156 151 Green St and a portion of the Town of Marblehead Land fill property

Resource Area: BVW

Interests of the WPA and Bylaw: Prevention of Pollution, Protection of Wildlife Habitat,

Protection of Ground Water Supply

Control Drawing: See NOI, prepared by Kleinfelder dated November 2013

Reference: NOI 40-1094 for the Marblehead Landfill issued 25 January 2013

Appeared: Andrew Petty and Matt Hering of the Board of Health, Stephen Wright of Kleinfelder, Jason Bobowski of BioEngineering, and Lisa Mead, Town Counsel.

This was a continuance from 12/12/13 and 1/9/14. No new plan changes. Owner proposed conditions agreed to by the applicant and presented below.

A clarification was made on the conditions from the Transfer Station that there is no wetlands replication proposed.

All members voted to close the hearing. All members voted to issue an OOC with the following special conditions:

## **Special Conditions:**

XX. The Applicant will take groundwater readings in the spring of 2014 in the area indicated on Figure 4 as "Low Point Area A" and "Low Point Area B" and adjust the amount of fill in those areas to assure there is no standing ground water such that the proposed plantings will survive and there will be no standing groundwater for extended periods of time.

YY. The Applicant will "coordinate" with the Owner of 151 Green Street to implement the final planting and grading at the area of restoration which overlaps with an areas of restoration in the Order of Conditions that was issued on August 2, 2012 for 151 Green Street, DEP file number 40-1088. Said coordination shall mean that the Owner shall not commence construction in the overlap area until the area soils are removed and the Applicant shall complete soil removal and return to existing grade in the area of overlap and plant wetland and upland grasses as set forth on Figure 4 and as approved hereunder. If the Owner of 151 Green Street provides written notice to the Applicant that he will commence construction within thirty days on the retaining wall in the area of overlap as shown on Figure 4 after it is returned to existing grade by the Applicant, then the Applicant will not conduct any planting within the limit of work of the Owner of 151 Green Street construction activities.

- ZZ. If it is determined that any additional waste excavation and wetland restoration are determined to be necessary on the 151 Green Street property beyond the limits of such work as shown on the current plans approved herein, the Applicant shall submit written notice and appropriate plans regarding the locations and performance of such work to the Commission, and all work to excavate and restore such areas shall be performed in accordance with the work plans and protocols that are approved in this Order of Conditions.
- 20. In accordance with General Condition No. 9 contained in this Order of Conditions, the applicant shall record this original Order of Conditions and any subsequent amendments thereto at the Registry of Deeds in Salem and shall submit the recording information to the Conservation Commission on the form for said information found at the end of the Order of Conditions prior to the commencement of any work authorized by this Order of Conditions or any amendments thereto. Failure to submit said recording information prior to the commencement of work may result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 21. Prior to any work authorized by this Order, a sign (1'x 2') shall be displayed in a

conspicuous place at the site with the words "DEP File 40-1156"

- 22. <u>Prior to any demolition, construction or earth moving activities on the site, the applicant shall make an appointment for a site inspection by the Conservation</u>

  Administrator to review the proposed work and the conditions contained in this Order.
- 23. A copy of the Order of Conditions as well as the final approved plan/s shall be available for inspection on site while activities regulated by the Order are underway.
- 24. This Order of Conditions is issued under the Wetlands Protection Act and its Regulations (MGL Chapter 131, Section 40 and 310 CMR 10.00 et. seq.), and under the Town of Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw (Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194) and its Regulations (Wetlands Protection Bylaw Regulations for Administering Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Sections 194-1 through 194-14). As such this Order constitutes a wetlands permit both under the Act and under the Bylaw.
- 25. The project shall be performed in accordance with the final approved plans and other documents referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be altered or amended by these Special Conditions. Any deviation from this Order of Conditions and the approved construction plan/s and documents requires authorization from the Conservation Commission prior to implementation. Any deviation from the approved construction plans and documents commenced prior to authorization is subject to a fine of up to \$300 per day, issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 26. The project shall be performed in accordance with the representations made by the applicant and his/her representative(s) and in accordance with the requirements of the Marblehead Conservation Commission, all as reflected in the public hearing record as documented in the minutes of the Marblehead Conservation Commission referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be specifically altered or amended by these Special Conditions.
- 27. These Special Conditions relate equally to both the Wetlands Protection Act and the Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw unless herein indicated otherwise.

#### **Pre-construction:**

- 29. All special conditions are to be included in the construction contracts between the applicant and his/her contractor.
- 30. A drawing of the erosion control techniques to be used on site shall be included in the construction contracts between the applicant and his/her contractor. The erosion control must be in place, erected per the drawing, before any work is started on the site.
- 31. Prior to commencement of construction activities, the Applicant shall obtain all federal, state and local permits (in addition to this OOC) that may be required for the proposed project.

## **During construction:**

- 32. This project shall not cause an increase in run-off onto adjacent properties or streets, either during construction or after completion. Appropriate measures shall be taken to prevent the movement of silt or debris onto adjacent properties, streets and Resource Areas.
- 33. There shall be no cleaning or rinsing of cement concrete ready-mix trucks, or cement concrete mixing equipment, such that the byproduct of the cleaning or rinsing operation finds its way to any resource area by any means, especially, but not limited to, by means of a storm drainage system (catch basins, pipes, drainage ditches, etc.).
- 35. All demolition debris shall be removed from the site as soon as possible and not stored within a resource area or a buffer zone. If a dumpster is used to contain debris, the dumpster shall be covered after each work day. The debris shall be properly disposed of in accordance with applicable federal, state and local regulations.
- 36. All construction material shall be stored outside the resource area and its buffer zone or as far back from the resource areas as possible.

### **Post-construction/in perpetuity:**

- 50. Invasive plants shall not be used nor maintained in the landscape of the project site. This applies to the existing landscape as well as to any proposed landscape. A list of invasive plants in Massachusetts can be found in the latest update of The Evaluation of Non-Native Plant Species for Invasiveness in Massachusetts (with annotated list) produced by the Massachusetts Invasive Plant Advisory Group. For most recent update, visit <a href="www.mnla.com">www.newfs.org</a>. <a href="www.mnla.com">This</a> <a href="www.mnla.com">condition shall survive this order</a>.
- 55. Upon completion of the work allowed under this Order of Conditions the applicant shall apply for a Certificate of Compliance (COC) (a) within 30 days after completion of the work or (b) thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of the original or extended OOC, whichever time comes sooner. If no work was started under the OOC or if some of the work will not be performed, the applicant must still apply for a Certificate of Compliance at least 30 days prior to the expiration of the OOC. The Conservation Commission may require the submission of an "as built" drawing (signed and stamped by a licensed Professional Engineer or licensed Professional Land Surveyor) with the application for the COC. Failure to submit an application for a COC shall result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".

#### **40-1160 10 CORN POINT ROAD**

Resource Area: Coastal Beach, Coastal Bank

Interests of the WPA and Bylaw: Flood Control, Storm Damage Prevention and Prevention of Pollution

Control Drawing: Revision 2 of Site Plan for NOI dated January 21, 2014, stamped by S. Patrowicz

Appeared: S. Patrowicz of Patrowicz Land Development Engineering

This was a continuance from 1/9/2014. There was a site visit on 1/18/14.

The plan was discussed that included all the Commission recommendations from the site visit.

All members voted to close the hearing. All members voted <u>to issue an OOC</u> with the following special conditions:

#### **Special Conditions:**

- 20. In accordance with General Condition No. 9 contained in this Order of Conditions, the applicant shall record this original Order of Conditions and any subsequent amendments thereto at the Registry of Deeds in Salem and shall submit the recording information to the Conservation Commission on the form for said information found at the end of the Order of Conditions prior to the commencement of any work authorized by this Order of Conditions or any amendments thereto. Failure to submit said recording information prior to the commencement of work may result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 21. Prior to any work authorized by this Order, a sign (1'x 2') shall be displayed in a conspicuous place at the site with the words "DEP File 40-1160"
- 22. Prior to any demolition, construction or earth moving activities on the site, the applicant shall make an appointment for a site inspection by the Conservation Administrator to review the proposed work and the conditions contained in this Order.
- 23. A copy of the Order of Conditions as well as the final approved plan/s shall be available for inspection on site while activities regulated by the Order are underway.
- 24. This Order of Conditions is issued under the Wetlands Protection Act and its Regulations (MGL Chapter 131, Section 40 and 310 CMR 10.00 et. seq.), and under the Town of Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw (Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194) and its Regulations (Wetlands Protection Bylaw Regulations for Administering Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Sections 194-1 through 194-14). As such this Order constitutes a wetlands permit both under the Act and under the Bylaw.
- 25. The project shall be performed in accordance with the final approved plans and other documents referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be altered or amended by these Special Conditions. Any deviation from this Order of Conditions and the approved construction plan/s and documents requires authorization from the Conservation Commission prior to implementation. Any deviation from the approved construction plans and documents commenced prior to authorization is subject to a fine of up to \$300 per day, issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 26. The project shall be performed in accordance with the representations made by the applicant and his/her representative(s) and in accordance with the requirements of the Marblehead

Conservation Commission, all as reflected in the public hearing record as documented in the minutes of the Marblehead Conservation Commission referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be specifically altered or amended by these Special Conditions.

27. These Special Conditions relate equally to both the Wetlands Protection Act and the Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw unless herein indicated otherwise.

#### **Pre-construction:**

- 29. All special conditions are to be included in the construction contracts between the applicant and his/her contractor.
- 30. A drawing of the erosion control techniques to be used on site shall be included in the construction contracts between the applicant and his/her contractor. The erosion control must be in place, erected per the drawing, before any work is started on the site.
- 31. Prior to commencement of construction activities, the Applicant shall obtain all federal, state and local permits (in addition to this OOC) that may be required for the proposed project.

## **During construction:**

- 32. This project shall not cause an increase in run-off onto adjacent properties or streets, either during construction or after completion. Appropriate measures shall be taken to prevent the movement of silt or debris onto adjacent properties, streets and Resource Areas.
- 33. There shall be no cleaning or rinsing of cement concrete ready-mix trucks, or cement concrete mixing equipment, such that the byproduct of the cleaning or rinsing operation finds its way to any resource area by any means, especially, but not limited to, by means of a storm drainage system (catch basins, pipes, drainage ditches, etc.).
- 34. To the maximum extent possible, all driveways, terraces, patios or similar ground-level surfaces shall be constructed as permeable surfaces to allow water to infiltrate through their surfaces into the ground on site.
- 35. All demolition debris shall be removed from the site as soon as possible and not stored within a resource area or a buffer zone. If a dumpster is used to contain debris, the dumpster shall be covered after each work day. The debris shall be properly disposed of in accordance with applicable federal, state and local regulations.
- 36. All construction material shall be stored outside the resource area and its buffer zone or as far back from the resource areas as possible.

### **Post-construction/in perpetuity:**

40. By voluntary agreement with the applicant, only organic fertilizers are to be used on the property landward of the resource areas. Fertilizers should not contain pesticides or herbicides; should contain slow release nitrogen and should not contain more than 3% phosphorous. To

mitigate chemical runoff, do not fertilize directly before a rainstorm and do not over fertilize. Apply fertilizer in late April and in September (refer to: <u>A Homeowner's Guide to Environmentally Sound Lawn care published by the Massachusetts Department of Food and Agriculture and the booklet, Don't Trash Grass, published by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection). **This condition shall survive this order.**</u>

- 41. Maintenance pointing and repairs of existing stone masonry walls and concrete walls including the replacement of an occasional missing stone or patching cracks and minor defects in a concrete wall are allowed as a surviving condition to this Order of Conditions. The property owner shall inform the Conservation Commission in writing at least seven days prior to any proposed repointing or repair work on existing walls. All dislodged and removed mortar/cement will be immediately contained and removed from the work site to prevent any such material from entering the resource waters. Any future razing, rebuilding or enlarging of the subject wall(s) will require the filing of a new Notice of Intent. This condition shall survive this order.
- 42. The repair/replacement of small sections of damaged caps on seawalls is allowed as a surviving condition. All dislodged and removed caps will be immediately contained and removed from the work site to prevent any such material from entering the resource waters. Prior to any work, the scope of the proposed repair/replacement must be approved by the Conservation Commission. If the cap on a major length or on an entire wall needs to repaired/replaced, this requires an NOI. **This condition shall survive this order.**
- 45. When a pool/spa/hot tub is to be drained, no chlorine or other chemicals are to be added to the pool water for a period of at least four (4) days prior to draining to allow for the chlorine and other chemicals to dissipate; and there shall be an appropriate sign placed permanently at or immediately adjacent to the pool/spa/hot tub drainage valve or mechanism indicating this requirement. The method of pool drainage shall be such as to prevent any soil erosion by the draining water and to allow the draining water to seep into the ground prior to entering any resource waters. No direct discharge to resource waters is allowed. This condition shall survive this order.
- 50. Invasive plants shall not be used nor maintained in the landscape of the project site. This applies to the existing landscape as well as to any proposed landscape. A list of invasive plants in Massachusetts can be found in the latest update of The Evaluation of Non-Native Plant Species for Invasiveness in Massachusetts (with annotated list) produced by the Massachusetts Invasive Plant Advisory Group. For most recent update, visit <a href="www.mnla.com">www.mnla.com</a> or <a href="www.mnla.com">www.newfs.org</a>. <a href="mailto:This">This</a> condition shall survive this order.
- 55. Upon completion of the work allowed under this Order of Conditions the applicant shall apply for a Certificate of Compliance (COC) (a) within 30 days after completion of the work or (b) thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of the original or extended OOC, whichever time comes sooner. If no work was started under the OOC or if some of the work will not be performed, the applicant must still apply for a Certificate of Compliance at least 30 days prior to the expiration of the OOC. The Conservation Commission may require the submission of an "as built" drawing (signed and stamped by a licensed Professional Engineer or licensed Professional Land Surveyor) with the application for the COC. Failure to submit an application for a COC

shall result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".

#### **RDA** 3 Beacon Street (Graves Boat Yard)

Resource Area: Coastal Bank

Interests of the WPA and Bylaw: Flood Control, Storm Damage Prevention and Prevention of Pollution

Control Drawing: Plan to Accompany RDA, #3 Beacon St, dated January 7, 2014

Reference: Letter from Walter Haug, dated 8/5/13

Continuance requested via email 2/12/14. All members voted to continue this hearing to the March 13, 2014

#### **40-1161 354 Atlantic Avenue**

Resource Areas: Coastal Beach, Coastal Bank, Land Subject to Coastal Storm Flowage

Interests of the WPA and Bylaw: Flood Control, Storm Damage Prevention and Prevention of Pollution

Control Drawing: Site Plan, #354 Atlantic Avenue, dated December 14, 2007 by North Shore Survey Corporation.

Appeared: William Rudolph (son of applicant).

Plan was discussed for proposed repairs to an existing seawall and yard maintenance. Cobbles to be removed from existing patio and small areas to the left and right. All work will be done by hand.

The extension of the wall will be filed as a separate NOI.

All members voted to close the hearing. All members voted to issue an OOC with the following special conditions:

### **Special Conditions:**

20. In accordance with General Condition No. 9 contained in this Order of Conditions, the applicant shall record this original Order of Conditions and any subsequent amendments thereto at the Registry of Deeds in Salem and shall submit the recording information to the Conservation Commission on the form for said information found at the end of the Order of Conditions prior to the commencement of any work authorized by this Order of Conditions or any amendments thereto. Failure to submit said recording information prior to the commencement of work may result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".

21. Prior to any work authorized by this Order, a sign (1'x 2') shall be displayed in a

conspicuous place at the site with the words "DEP File 40-1161"

- 22. <u>Prior to any demolition, construction or earth moving activities on the site, the applicant shall make an appointment for a site inspection by the Conservation</u>

  Administrator to review the proposed work and the conditions contained in this Order.
- 23. A copy of the Order of Conditions as well as the final approved plan/s shall be available for inspection on site while activities regulated by the Order are underway.
- 24. This Order of Conditions is issued under the Wetlands Protection Act and its Regulations (MGL Chapter 131, Section 40 and 310 CMR 10.00 et. seq.), and under the Town of Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw (Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194) and its Regulations (Wetlands Protection Bylaw Regulations for Administering Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Sections 194-1 through 194-14). As such this Order constitutes a wetlands permit both under the Act and under the Bylaw.
- 25. The project shall be performed in accordance with the final approved plans and other documents referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be altered or amended by these Special Conditions. Any deviation from this Order of Conditions and the approved construction plan/s and documents requires authorization from the Conservation Commission prior to implementation. Any deviation from the approved construction plans and documents commenced prior to authorization is subject to a fine of up to \$300 per day, issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 26. The project shall be performed in accordance with the representations made by the applicant and his/her representative(s) and in accordance with the requirements of the Marblehead Conservation Commission, all as reflected in the public hearing record as documented in the minutes of the Marblehead Conservation Commission referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be specifically altered or amended by these Special Conditions.
- 27. These Special Conditions relate equally to both the Wetlands Protection Act and the Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw unless herein indicated otherwise.

#### **Pre-construction:**

- 29. All special conditions are to be included in the construction contracts between the applicant and his/her contractor.
- 31. Prior to commencement of construction activities, the Applicant shall obtain all federal, state and local permits (in addition to this OOC) that may be required for the proposed project.

### **During construction:**

32. This project shall not cause an increase in run-off onto adjacent properties or streets, either during construction or after completion. Appropriate measures shall be taken to prevent the movement of silt or debris onto adjacent properties, streets and Resource Areas.

- 33. There shall be no cleaning or rinsing of cement concrete ready-mix trucks, or cement concrete mixing equipment, such that the byproduct of the cleaning or rinsing operation finds its way to any resource area by any means, especially, but not limited to, by means of a storm drainage system (catch basins, pipes, drainage ditches, etc.).
- 35. All demolition debris shall be removed from the site as soon as possible and not stored within a resource area or a buffer zone. If a dumpster is used to contain debris, the dumpster shall be covered after each work day. The debris shall be properly disposed of in accordance with applicable federal, state and local regulations.

## **Post-construction/in perpetuity:**

- 40. By voluntary agreement with the applicant, only organic fertilizers are to be used on the property landward of the resource areas. Fertilizers should not contain pesticides or herbicides; should contain slow release nitrogen and should not contain more than 3% phosphorous. To mitigate chemical runoff, do not fertilize directly before a rainstorm and do not over fertilize. Apply fertilizer in late April and in September (refer to: A Homeowner's Guide to Environmentally Sound Lawn care published by the Massachusetts Department of Food and Agriculture and the booklet, Don't Trash Grass, published by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection). This condition shall survive this order.
- 41. Maintenance pointing and repairs of existing stone masonry walls and concrete walls including the replacement of an occasional missing stone or patching cracks and minor defects in a concrete wall are allowed as a surviving condition to this Order of Conditions. The property owner shall inform the Conservation Commission in writing at least seven days prior to any proposed repointing or repair work on existing walls. All dislodged and removed mortar/cement will be immediately contained and removed from the work site to prevent any such material from entering the resource waters. Any future razing, rebuilding or enlarging of the subject wall(s) will require the filing of a new Notice of Intent. This condition shall survive this order.
- XX. Excess cobble or sand which may occassionaly accumulate above the seawall on top of the existing patio or to the sides thereof, may be removed back onto the beach. Any removal of excess cobble or sand accumulated above the seawall shall be done by hand and the excess shall be placed on the beach on the seaward side of the seawall. No cobble or sand shall be removed from the site. The property owner shall inform the Conservation Commission in writing at least seven days prior to any work to remove excess cobble or sand. This condition shall survive this order.
- 50. Invasive plants shall not be used nor maintained in the landscape of the project site. This applies to the existing landscape as well as to any proposed landscape. A list of invasive plants in Massachusetts can be found in the latest update of The Evaluation of Non-Native Plant Species for Invasiveness in Massachusetts (with annotated list) produced by the Massachusetts Invasive Plant Advisory Group. For most recent update, visit <a href="www.mnla.com">www.mnla.com</a> or <a href="www.mnla.com">www.newfs.org</a>. <a href="mailto:This">This</a> condition shall survive this order.

- 55. Upon completion of the work allowed under this Order of Conditions the applicant shall apply for a Certificate of Compliance (COC) (a) within 30 days after completion of the work or (b) thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of the original or extended OOC, whichever time comes sooner. If no work was started under the OOC or if some of the work will not be performed, the applicant must still apply for a Certificate of Compliance at least 30 days prior to the expiration of the OOC. The Conservation Commission may require the submission of an "as built" drawing (signed and stamped by a licensed Professional Engineer or licensed Professional Land Surveyor) with the application for the COC. Failure to submit an application for a COC shall result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 102. A tarp will be laid down at the base of the seawall during all repair work to capture all construction debris. The tarp will be on the seaward side of the seawall. The tarp will be rolled up and dumped into a disposal trailer as required throughout the work day and will be removed at the end of each work day.

## **40-1162 24 Gregory Street**

Resource Area: Coastal Beach and Coastal Bank

Interests of the WPA and Bylaw: Flood Control, Storm Damage Prevention and Prevention of Pollution

Control Drawing: Site Plan to Accompany NOI, #24 Gregory Street, dated January 24, 2014 prepared by Patrowicz Land Development Engineering

Appeared: S. Patrowicz of Patrowicz Land Development Engineering

Plans were discussed for proposed repair and re-pointing of existing stone seawall and concrete steps and repair landscaping.

All members voted to close the hearing. All members voted to issue an OOC with the following special conditions:

### **Special Conditions:**

- 20. In accordance with General Condition No. 9 contained in this Order of Conditions, the applicant shall record this original Order of Conditions and any subsequent amendments thereto at the Registry of Deeds in Salem and shall submit the recording information to the Conservation Commission on the form for said information found at the end of the Order of Conditions prior to the commencement of any work authorized by this Order of Conditions or any amendments thereto. Failure to submit said recording information prior to the commencement of work may result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 21. Prior to any work authorized by this Order, a sign (1'x 2') shall be displayed in a conspicuous place at the site with the words "DEP File 40-1162"

- 22. <u>Prior to any demolition, construction or earth moving activities on the site, the applicant shall make an appointment for a site inspection by the Conservation</u>
  Administrator to review the proposed work and the conditions contained in this Order.
- 23. A copy of the Order of Conditions as well as the final approved plan/s shall be available for inspection on site while activities regulated by the Order are underway.
- 24. This Order of Conditions is issued under the Wetlands Protection Act and its Regulations (MGL Chapter 131, Section 40 and 310 CMR 10.00 et. seq.), and under the Town of Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw (Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194) and its Regulations (Wetlands Protection Bylaw Regulations for Administering Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Sections 194-1 through 194-14). As such this Order constitutes a wetlands permit both under the Act and under the Bylaw.
- 25. The project shall be performed in accordance with the final approved plans and other documents referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be altered or amended by these Special Conditions. Any deviation from this Order of Conditions and the approved construction plan/s and documents requires authorization from the Conservation Commission prior to implementation. Any deviation from the approved construction plans and documents commenced prior to authorization is subject to a fine of up to \$300 per day, issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".
- 26. The project shall be performed in accordance with the representations made by the applicant and his/her representative(s) and in accordance with the requirements of the Marblehead Conservation Commission, all as reflected in the public hearing record as documented in the minutes of the Marblehead Conservation Commission referenced in Attachment A to this Order of Conditions, except as the project may be specifically altered or amended by these Special Conditions.
- 27. These Special Conditions relate equally to both the Wetlands Protection Act and the Marblehead Wetlands Protection Bylaw unless herein indicated otherwise.

#### **Pre-construction:**

- 29. All special conditions are to be included in the construction contracts between the applicant and his/her contractor.
- 30. A drawing of the erosion control techniques to be used on site shall be included in the construction contracts between the applicant and his/her contractor. The erosion control must be in place, erected per the drawing, before any work is started on the site.
- 31. Prior to commencement of construction activities, the Applicant shall obtain all federal, state and local permits (in addition to this OOC) that may be required for the proposed project.

### **During construction:**

32. This project shall not cause an increase in run-off onto adjacent properties or streets, either

during construction or after completion. Appropriate measures shall be taken to prevent the movement of silt or debris onto adjacent properties, streets and Resource Areas.

- 33. There shall be no cleaning or rinsing of cement concrete ready-mix trucks, or cement concrete mixing equipment, such that the byproduct of the cleaning or rinsing operation finds its way to any resource area by any means, especially, but not limited to, by means of a storm drainage system (catch basins, pipes, drainage ditches, etc.).
- 35. All demolition debris shall be removed from the site as soon as possible and not stored within a resource area or a buffer zone. If a dumpster is used to contain debris, the dumpster shall be covered after each work day. The debris shall be properly disposed of in accordance with applicable federal, state and local regulations.
- 36. All construction material shall be stored outside the resource area and its buffer zone or as far back from the resource areas as possible.

# Post-construction/in perpetuity:

- 40. By voluntary agreement with the applicant, only organic fertilizers are to be used on the property landward of the resource areas. Fertilizers should not contain pesticides or herbicides; should contain slow release nitrogen and should not contain more than 3% phosphorous. To mitigate chemical runoff, do not fertilize directly before a rainstorm and do not over fertilize. Apply fertilizer in late April and in September (refer to: A Homeowner's Guide to Environmentally Sound Lawn care published by the Massachusetts Department of Food and Agriculture and the booklet, Don't Trash Grass, published by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection). This condition shall survive this order.
- 41. Maintenance pointing and repairs of existing stone masonry walls and concrete walls including the replacement of an occasional missing stone or patching cracks and minor defects in a concrete wall are allowed as a surviving condition to this Order of Conditions. The property owner shall inform the Conservation Commission in writing at least seven days prior to any proposed repointing or repair work on existing walls. All dislodged and removed mortar/cement will be immediately contained and removed from the work site to prevent any such material from entering the resource waters. Any future razing, rebuilding or enlarging of the subject wall(s) will require the filing of a new Notice of Intent. This condition shall survive this order.
- 42. The repair/replacement of small sections of damaged caps on seawalls is allowed as a surviving condition. All dislodged and removed caps will be immediately contained and removed from the work site to prevent any such material from entering the resource waters. Prior to any work, the scope of the proposed repair/replacement must be approved by the Conservation Commission. If the cap on a major length or on an entire wall needs to repaired/replaced, this requires an NOI. This condition shall survive this order.
- 50. Invasive plants shall not be used nor maintained in the landscape of the project site. This applies to the existing landscape as well as to any proposed landscape. A list of invasive plants in Massachusetts can be found in the latest update of The Evaluation of Non-Native Plant Species for Invasiveness in Massachusetts (with annotated list) produced by the Massachusetts Invasive

Plant Advisory Group. For most recent update, visit <u>www.mnla.com</u> or <u>www.newfs.org</u>. <u>This</u> <u>condition shall survive this order.</u>

55. Upon completion of the work allowed under this Order of Conditions the applicant shall apply for a Certificate of Compliance (COC) (a) within 30 days after completion of the work or (b) thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of the original or extended OOC, whichever time comes sooner. If no work was started under the OOC or if some of the work will not be performed, the applicant must still apply for a Certificate of Compliance at least 30 days prior to the expiration of the OOC. The Conservation Commission may require the submission of an "as built" drawing (signed and stamped by a licensed Professional Engineer or licensed Professional Land Surveyor) with the application for the COC. Failure to submit an application for a COC shall result in a fine issued against the applicant in accordance with Marblehead Bylaws Chapter 194, Section 11E. See Attachment "C" for "Schedule of Fines".

102. A tarp will be laid down at the base of the seawall during all repair work to capture all construction debris. The tarp will be on the seaward side of the seawall. The tarp will be rolled up and dumped into a disposal trailer as required throughout the work day and will be removed at the end of each work day.

### **40-1163 75 Naugus Avenue**

Resource Area: Coastal Bank and Coastal Beach

Interests of the WPA and Bylaw: Flood Control, Storm Damage Prevention and Prevention of Pollution

Control Drawing: Proposed Site Plan to Accompany NOI, #75 Naugus Avenue, dated January 26, 2014 prepared by Patrowicz Land Development Engineering

Appeared: S. Patrowicz of Patrowicz Land Development Engineering, Todd J Barbera and Heidi C. Herlihy

The plans were discussed for proposed demolition of existing house, construction of a new house, patios, walkways, driveway, utilities and landscaping. There was a site visit schedule for on 3/8/14 at 9:30 am.

Revised impervious calculations were requested.

Matthew Herring of 83 Naugus Avenue spoke in favor of the project.

All members voted to continue this hearing to the March 13, 2014 meeting.

#### **Old Business:**

• 40-945, 83 Naugus Avenue, Matthew Herring. Reference letter from Division of Marine Fisheries dated January 27, 2014 and subsequent emails dated 1/23/14, 1/24/14, 1/27,14, 1/30/14, and 1/31/14. A letter from John Harvey of Smith Marine (diver) dated February

- 10, 2014 stated that the 2012 eelgrass map is correct but no eelgrass at the proposed float location. Discussion only, no action taken by the Commission.
- 40-1123, 15 Spray Ave, status of Enforcement Order issued 1/2/2014. Dolores Selenkow, abutter, and Barbara Selenkow-Rippberger, daughter of abutter, spoke about work not being completed to original conditions. Commission stated that a letter would be written that required: (1) gravel material must be removed by the Applicant, (2) Applicant must fully restore the right-of-way, and (3) Applicant shall request confirmation from a structural engineer on the stability of the boulders at the top of the right-of-way.
- 40-1155, 6 Corn Point Road, Mark and Sandra Pocharski. Scott Patrowicz requested on behalf of the applicant that special conditions 41 and 42 be added as part of the OOC.

# **Request for COC:**

- 40-567, 22 Skinners Path, Kathleen Mulcahy Gallagher: All members <u>voted to approve</u> this COC.
- 40-736, 11 Bartlett St, Paul Mitchell: \$300 fine was issued for OOC not being recorded. All members <u>voted to approve this COC</u>.
- 40-812, 11 Bartlett St, Paul Mitchell: Larry DiGiammarino was representing Paul Mitchell. The vegetated strip was not constructed and it is required that this be disclosed to the new Owner as a condition of the approval of this COC. All members <u>voted to approve</u> this COC.
- 40-1134, 11 Bartlett St, Paul Mitchell: All members voted to approve this COC.

**Sign Documents:** All documents per the agenda were signed.

The meeting adjourned at 9.25 PM.